ST JOSEPH’S PARISH GRENFELL

	As early as 1838 when Yass was established as the first Ecclesiastical district in the interior of Australia, the whole area from Yass to Melbourne was served by a solitary dedicated priest.  The first of these was Fr Brennan followed in 1839 by Fr Lovatt and in 1847 by Fr Magennis. To lessen distance travelled the parish of Albury was established in 1854.  In 1857 two priests came to Yass, Fr McAlroy as PP and Dr Bermingham as his assistant. Over the years priests from Yass travelled from Station to Station, administering to the spiritual needs of places visited.  In their Baptismal registers, among the names of places visited, “Weddin Mountains” is frequently listed with “Currawong” . “Calabash”, ”Stoney Creek”, “Cudgil”, “Wollenbeen” and “Coolagong”.   John Nowlan, born in Ireland in 1806 came to Australia and went on the land in the 1830’s.  He came to the “Weddin Mountains” and in 1843 purchased the property “Wentworth” from Mrs Hanrahan.  He and his family must surely have been the first Catholics in this area ministered to by the pioneer priests from Yass.  The first John Nowlan died at “Wentworth” on 15th December 1889 aged 83years.  His son John had taken over “Wentworth” in 1860.    (1)

	YEAR
	CHURCH
	CLERGY
	STATISTICS
	NOTES

	1867
	
	
	Supposition: first mass in this building celebrated by Fr O’Neill (also served Young and Boorowa)

Grenfell Record (1867) published .upwards of 200 persons received Holy Communion and 35 adults and children were confirmed.  (1)
	Following March 1867 meeting, small church opened June 1867. Double duty as church and school until burnt down November 1867.

Dr William Lanigan first resident Bishop of Goulburn, consecrated June 1867, made his first visit to Grenfell September 1867.  He blessed the new church at Grenfell on 8th September 1867.  (1)

	1871

1884
	Rev H Finnegan 

In 1880 Fr Finnegan transferred to Gundagai .

Fr W McGrath appointed Pastor at Young. Fr J Gaffey assistant from 1880 to 1882.

Fr T O’Connell from 1882 – 1884 when the new Parish of Grenfell was formed.

From 1882 – 1884 Fr O’Connell served Grenfell from Young.

Grenfell Record issue May 28th 1898 records

Death of Very Rev HM Finnegan, then parish priest of Gundagai, died at that presbytery last Saturday afternoon at the age of 60years from general break up in health.  Fr Finnegan was one of the most prominent priests in the Colonial Church.  He had exceptional powers of organisation and through his energy were splendid piles of buildings erected

(1). 
	Assistant priests appointed to Young (at the time including Grenfell) 

Fr Dennis O’Dwyer

Ftr D McCarthy, 1876

Fr A O”Dwyer 1878

(1)

Grenfell Record November 16 1878

Mass will be celebrated at Grenfell Sunday November 14th. HM Finnegan

Catholic pastor  (1)


	Original entry says Young changed to Grenfell & districts – but in July 1872 says Rev Finnegan – Young.

After that date Grenfell definitely a dependency of Young until 1884, when a new Parish of Grenfell was established in July 1884. (1)

Bishop visited Grenfell May 1875 Dr Lanigan was accompanied by Frs. Finnegan and O’Dwyer. dressed in full pontifical dress, he and two priests proceeded a long procession to the consecration of the cemetery.  (1)

After the original church burnt down in 1876, Bishop Lanigan and Fr Finnegan blessed the foundation of the new St Joseph’s Church o November 12th.

This church served as church and school.  (1)

 In 2010 this building still stands and is used as a church hall.



	In July 1884 Grenfell and Gooloogong were cut off from Young and formed into a separate parish.  The new Grenfell Parish adjoined Young and stretched almost to lake Cargelligo in the west and to the Lachlan River in the north, covering well over 1000 square miles of sparsely inhabited country and the priest made his rounds on horseback in all sorts of weather. 

Grenfell record – July 19th 1884:  Catholic – The rev Father O’Connell left Young on Monday last for Albury, having been appointed to that district.  The Rev gentleman during his connection with Grenfell made a host of friends, not only among his own, but every other denomination, and much regret is expressed at his departure.  Fr Quirke, of Albury, succeeds Fr O’Connell and will take up his residence in Grenfell.   (1)

Prior to the establishment of the new parish – notice in Grenfell Record March 1884  and May 10 1884:

His Lordship, the right Rev Dr Lanigan, Bishop of Goulburn, will administer the sacrament of Confirmation at Grenfell on

Sunday 11th May.  (1)
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	July 1884 – Jan 1885
	St Joseph’s
	Fr Michael Quirke

(1)
	First Baptismal Register all Baptismal entries recorded on the first two pages were signed by Fr Michael Quirke (1) (2)
	Apart from Register entries one other mention of Rev Fr Quirke, December 17th 1884 – Grenfell Record.  A Miss M’Caig, who had been in charge of St Joseph’s Catholic School for the past two years had resigned and was given a presentation by the pupils, and we find Fr Quirke thanking them on behalf of Miss M’Caig (1)

	1885

Late 1893
	St Joseph’s
	Fr Thomas Gray

(1)
	Took over the parish and remained for 10years  (1)
	First entry in registers February 1885 and last November 1893   (1)

	Late 1893 – early 1894
	St Joseph’s
	Fr James Mullan

E. J. Fallon

(1)


	
	

	1895-1909
	St Joseph’s
	Fr John Lane 
Fr James Mullan
(until 1896)
Fr John Fleming

(1896-1902)

then to Wagga.

Returned 1917-1918

Fr Edmund Sheehan to Grenfell after Fr Fleming’s transfer to Wagga

Fr John McDwyer also in Grenfell 1905.

Fr Thomas Lynch first appointment in Australia February 1905.

Fr Lynch – President Hibernian Society.

June 1909 after death of Fr Lane, appointed administrator until Fr McAlroy appointed December 1909.
Remained until early 1912 then transferred to Cootamundra.

New parish of Gooloogong formed 1914 Fr Lynch first Parish Priest.

Reference for all (1)
	June 1898 Right Rev Dr Gallagher made first visit as Bishop – confirmed 70 candidates.  (1)
Fr Lane read a statement of accounts for the three years of his pastorate (1895-1898) showing the enormous debt existing when he took charge (over $2000) and which was now “well in hand”  Collections for the three years amounted To $1173  (1)
	First appears in registers July 1895
From the time of his arrival until his death in 1909 Fr Lane worked diligently to reduce the huge debt existing on Church property and to raise money for a much needed new church (1)

Fr Fleming born County Kerry 1873. Graduated Dublin ordained 1893

Joined Goulburn diocese under Dr Gallagher – Grenfell first appointment.

Died Lewisham Hospital aged 53yrs in 1926.   (1)

In 1905 three postulants from Grenfell received into the Convent of Mercy at Goulburn.

Margaret Quigley, Winnie Meldrum and Issie Meldrum.

During 1909 Sisters of Mercy Grenfell prepared 33 pupils for colleges of music, all being singularly successful, two Misses Maddens and Clements securing cap and gown for piano. (1)

Fr Lane with Bishop Dr Gallagher at Bimbi on June 2 1909 when 27 candidates were confirmed.  Three weeks later on June 24th Fr lane died aged 49 years.  Buried in Grenfell June 29th 1909.  The hearse was drawn by four black horses in trappings.  (1)

	
	
	
	
	

	OUTLYING DISTRICT CHURCHES

These churches very active in the early days of the Parish.  Frequent mention is made of their activities.  Each centre was visited by the Bishop on his official rounds, when the sacrament of Confirmation would be administered.  Early centres

were Bimbi, Piney range, Pullabooka, Ooma, Gooloogong – the last becoming a separate parish in 1914.  Now all closed or transferred to other Parishes in the reshuffle of boundaries.        (1) 
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	1906-1907
	St Joseph’s
	Fr Thomas Lynch

Fr Joseph Keating (6/07)

(1)
	Foundation stone for new church laid

Blessed & opened 23rd June 1907

Debt cleared
	

	1909-1934
	St Joseph’s
	Fr McAlroy 

1909 – 1934

(1)
	3 priests still in parish during this time

McAlroy, Lynch & Keating
	Keating & McDwyer replaced by McDade and O”Farrell

McAlroy died 3rd June 1934 – buried Grenfell

	1927
	St Joseph’s
	Right Rev John Barry DD Bishop of Goulburn 

(1)
	Open and bless new

church
	

	1935-1943
	St Joseph’s
	Fr James McDade
(1)
	
	Also here during this time
Dan Green     1933  Thomas Moore

Fr Kerrigan 1937 Fr Casey June 1937 – December 1938

	1944-1945
	ST Joseph’s
	Fr Michael Dominic O’Sullivan
(1)
	
	Also here Fr Downey            1942 – 1946
Fr D Fitzgerald 1946 – 1947

Fr M O”Riordan 1947 – 1948

Fr G Collins 1948 – 1949

Fr M D Quinn 1949-1950

Fr Boucher 1950

	1955-1961
	St Joseph’s
	Fr John Twomey

(1)
	
	

	1962-1973
	St Joseph’s
	Fr John Joseph Brohan

(1)
	
	Fr Flanagan             1962

Fr Flanagan 1963

Fr Mulcahy
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